
City of Monticello, Iowa 
www.ci.monticello.ia.us 

Monticello City Council Meeting August 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.  
Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, Monticello, Iowa 

 
Mayor:  Wayne Peach  Staff:  
City Council:    City Administrator:       Russell Farnum 
At Large: Josh Brenneman City Clerk/Treas.:      Sally Hinrichsen 
At Large: Scott Brighton  Police Chief:       Britt Smith 
At Large: Jake Ellwood  Library Director:      Faith Brehm 
At Large: Dave Goedken  Public Works Dir.:      Nick Kahler 
At Large: Candy Langerman Water/Wastewater Sup.:  Jim Tjaden 
At Large: Mary Phelan  Park & Rec Director:      Jacob Oswald 
     Ambulance Director:      Lori Lynch 
     City Engineer:       Patrick Schwickerath  
 
- Call to Order – 6:00 P.M. 
- Pledge of Allegiance 
- Roll Call 
- Agenda Addition/Agenda Approval 
 
Open Forum: If you wish to address the City Council on subjects pertaining to 
today’s meeting agenda please wait until that item on the agenda is reached.  If you 
wish to address the City Council on an item not on the agenda, please approach the 
lectern and give your name and address for the public record before discussing your 
item. Individuals are normally limited to speaking for no more than three (3) minutes 
on a topic and the Open Forum is by rule limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes. 
 
Consent Agenda (These are routine items and will be enacted by one motion 
without separate discussion unless someone requests an item removed to be 
considered separately.) 
 
Approval of Council Mtg. Minutes   July   15, 2024  
Approval of Payroll     July    25, 2024 
Approval of Bill List 
Approval of Puff N Stuff cigarette/tobacco permit 
Approval of Pheasant’s Forever alcohol license 
 
 
Public Hearings:  

 
1. Public Hearing on proposed Development Agreement with Highland Corp  

 
2. Public Hearing on designation of Amended Monticello Urban Renewal Plan, to 

include Highland Corp Project 
 

3. Resolution To Approve Amendment to Urban Renewal Plan to include 
Development Agreement and Economic Incentives to Highland Corp 



 
Resolutions: 
 

4. Resolution Approving Kristofer & Monica Lyons Tax Abatement Application 
related to Residential Improvements constructed at 308 North Gill Street, 
Monticello, Iowa 

 
5. Resolution Approving Dennis & Kay Fear Tax Abatement Application 

related to Residential Improvements constructed at 676 North Chestnut Street, 
Monticello, Iowa 
 

6. Resolution Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2024-39 and Parcel 2024-40 
 

7. Resolution Approving the Preliminary and Final Plat of Brad Stephen’s 
Fourth Addition, Jones County, Iowa, a subdivision of Lot 1 of Fourth 
Addition, all in Jones County, Iowa 
 

8. Resolution Approving Robert F. and Jan M. Hinz Voluntary Pre-Annexation 
Agreement 

 
9. Resolution Approving Change Order #5 in the increased amount of 

$1,008.00, submitted by Boomerang related to the Monticello Airport 
Taxiway Connector Project 
 

10. Resolution Approving Pay Request #7 related to the Monticello Airport 
Taxiway Connector project, to Boomerang, which includes the retainage, in the 
amount of $48.676.11 

 
11. Resolution Acknowledging the completion and Acceptance of Monticello 

Airport Apron/taxiway Improvements project  
 

12. Resolution Approving Change Order #2, in the increased amount of $513.50 
submitted by Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC related to the N. 
Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project 
 

13. Resolution Approving Pay Request #3 to Eastern Iowa Excavating & 
Concrete, LLC, Re: N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project in the amount 
of $196,690.66 

 
 
Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

14. City Engineer 
15. Mayor 
16. City Administrator 
17. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
18. Park and Recreation Director 
19. Library Director 



20. Ambulance Director  
21. City Clerk 
22. Public Works Director 
23. Police Chief 

 
Work Sessions: 
 

24. Work session - 6th Street Ditch presentation from Snyder & Associates 
 

25. Work Session - Goal Setting and Follow Up Report 
 

26. Work Session – City of Monticello Cash Management and Internal Control 
policy 
 

Adjournment:  Pursuant to §21.4(2) of the Code of Iowa, the City has the right to 
amend this agenda up until 24 hours before the posted meeting time. 
 
Monticello City Council meetings are recorded, by attending and choosing to 
participate you give your consent to be recorded. If you prefer not to be recorded, 
you may submit comments in writing. 
 
 
The meeting will continue to be broadcast on Mediacom (Local Access Channel) and 
will be accessible via Zoom via the following link. 
 
City of Monticello is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: August 5, 2024 Council Meeting 
Time: Aug 5, 2024 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86891982549 
 
Meeting ID: 868 9198 2549 
--- 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,86891982549# US (Chicago) 
+16465588656,,86891982549# US (New York) 
--- 
Dial by your location 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
 
Meeting ID: 868 9198 2549 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdL20lmmvi 
 

“This employer is an equal opportunity provider & employer” 



Regular Council Meeting  
July 15, 2024, 6:00 P.M. 
Community Media Center 
 
Mayor Wayne Peach called the meeting to order. Council present were: Josh Brenneman, 
Dave Goedken, Candy Langerman, Scott Brighton, Mary Phelan and Jake Ellwood.  Also 
present were City Administrator Russell Farnum, City Clerk Sally Hinrichsen, Library 
Director Faith Brehm, Park & Rec Director Jacob Oswald, Public Works Director Nick 
Kahler, Police Chief Britt Smith and Ambulance Director Lori Lynch.  The public was 
invited to attend the meeting in person, or to participate in the meeting electronically via 
“Zoom Meetings” or “Facebook” and were encouraged to communicate from the chat or 
message.   
 
Ellwood moved to approve the agenda as amended, moving the Cash Management Policy 
to a work session, Goedken seconded, roll call was unanimous.   
 
Ellwood moved to approve the consent agenda; Phelan seconded.  Roll call was 
unanimous.  
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2024-109 Approving Pay Request #3 to Bill 
Bruce Builders, Inc., Re: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project in the 
amount of $706,470.97.  Brighton seconded.  Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Farnum reported he applied for a natural gas generator grant.  However, it was decided 
that a diesel generator is a better option, because in a major storm or disaster, they could 
shut off the gas.  Brighton moved to approve Resolution #2024-110 Authorizing the 
Purchase of a generator for the West Well from Altorfer Equipment in the amount of 
$45,980.00,  Ellwood seconded, roll call unanimous. 
 
Goedken moved to authorize the Library to purchase a Charlie Cart, Brenneman 
seconded, roll call unanimous. 
 
Goedken moved to accept the Airport Hangar Painting Proposal from Webb Painting, 
Brenneman seconded, roll call unanimous. 
 
Farnum updated Council on the work being done at the Wastewater Treatment Facility 
and N. Chestnut Street Project.   
 
Farnum reported he will be touring two downtown buildings,  with the Main Street 
Director Brian Wolken and an architect with Main Street.  He attended an HR meeting 
where they discussed cost saving measures related to health insurance.  Farnum reported 
the airport taxiway project is completed and will be on the next agenda. 
 
Peach advised he heard a lot of good feedback on the 4th of July parade. 
 
Smitt advised they are geared up to the fair.  
 
Oswald stated flag football sign up will be starting.  He also stated that pool painting  
bids were let and will be on the August 19th meeting.   
 



Regular Council Meeting  
July 15, 2024 
 
 
Brehm reported the Library will have reduced hours this week due to the fair and gave an 
update on the summer reading events coming up. 
 
Lynch stated they purchased radios with the help of the EMTs and Fire Department. 
 
Kahler advised they have been working on trees and street repairs.  They are planning to 
clean a section of Kitty Creek ditch along the disc golf course. 
 
Goedken moved to table the discussion on the Cash Management Policy until the August 
5th Council meeting.  Ellwood seconded, roll call unanimous. 
 
Council held a Goal Setting session with Derek Lumsden facilitating. 
 
Brenneman moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:21P.M.  

 
             
       Wayne Peach, Mayor  
   
 
       
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

AMBULANCE July 8 - 21, 2024
Chris Bell 447.20$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 385.22$           
Jamie Coleman 2,508.66                  291.06             0.00 0.00 1,938.19          
Jordan Fullerton 2,150.96                  440.88             0.00 0.00 1,689.46          
Mason Hanson 1,081.08                  -                   0.00 0.00 828.23             
Brandon Kent 706.86                     -                   0.00 0.00 598.74             
Jayna Koffron 872.09                     -                   0.00 0.00 714.00             
Lori Lynch 3,173.85                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,101.46          
Coletta Matson 2,550.24                  332.64             0.00 0.00 1,676.25          
Chloe Mogensen 443.52                     -                   0.00 0.00 288.53             
Kyle Pierson 801.38                     -                   0.00 0.00 662.92             
Daniel Poirier 1,898.82                  124.74             0.00 0.00 1,510.97          
Shannon Poe 351.90                     -                   0.00 0.00 283.20             
Shirlee Scott 2,137.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,603.86          
Reggie Welter 1,492.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,153.02          
Curtis Wyman 1,965.60                  -                   25.50 60.75 1,360.13          

TOTAL AMBULANCE 22,581.76$              1,189.32$        25.50 60.75 16,794.18$      

CEMETERY July 8 - 21, 2024
Sawyer Brokaw 1,084.66$                5.72$               0.00 0.00 924.94$           
Dan McDonald 2,106.40                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,551.08          
Anthony Williams 1,206.66                  5.72                 0.00 0.00 1,015.56          

TOTAL CEMETERY 4,397.72$                11.44$             0.00 0.00 3,491.58$        

CITY HALL July 8 - 21, 2024
Cheryl Clark 2,288.00$                -$                 0.00 5.25 1,574.41$        
Russ Farnum 3,961.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,566.06          
Sally Hinrichsen 3,192.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,944.95          
Nanci Tuel 2,176.80                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,580.77          

TOTAL CITY HALL 11,618.88$              -$                 0.00 5.25 7,666.19$        

COUNCIL / MAYOR
Josh Brenneman 300.00$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 276.78$           
Scott Brighton 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.78             
Jake Ellwood 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             
Dave Goedken 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.78             
Candy Langerman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             
Wayne Peach 500.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 421.75             
Mary Phelan 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             

TOTAL COUNCIL / MAYOR 2,300.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,083.24$        

LIBRARY July 8 - 21, 2024
Faith Brehm 1,764.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,342.89$        
Molli Hunter 1,305.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,032.83          
Penny Schmit 1,549.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,090.00          
Jacqueline Stadtmueller 480.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 443.28             

TOTAL LIBRARY 5,099.20$                -$                 0.00 0.00 3,909.00$        

MBC July 8 - 21, 2024
Grace Dupuy 1,655.77$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,267.70$        

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - JULY 25, 2024

Page 1 of 3



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - JULY 25, 2024

Keziah McQuillen 315.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 290.90             
Jacob Oswald 2,533.92                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,914.42          
Ambrose Williams 840.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 735.26             

TOTAL MBC 5,344.69$                -$                 0.00 0.00 4,208.28$        

POLICE July 8 - 21, 2024
Zach Buehler 380.48$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 327.74$           
Dawn Graver 2,964.01                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,155.79          
Erik Honda 3,612.00                  393.02             0.00 6.00 2,667.30          
Jordan Koos 2,637.60                  (565.20)            15.00 15.00 1,808.01          
Cole Millard 3,068.70                  333.90             0.00 0.00 2,070.82          
Britt Smith 3,561.31                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,602.65          
Madonna Staner 1,819.20                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,351.25          
Brian Tate 3,396.12                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,532.95          

TOTAL POLICE 21,439.42$              161.72$           15.00 21.00 15,516.51$      

POOL July 5 - 18, 2024
Lydia Ahlrichs 1,067.38$                -$                 0.00 0.00 875.35$           
Allisen Capron 194.75                     -                   0.00 0.00 179.86             
Collin Cashner 210.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 193.93             
Marlee Chapman 882.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 767.82             
Skylar Christensen 192.50                     -                   0.00 0.00 177.77             
Gabriella Donovan 105.06                     -                   0.00 0.00 97.03               
Macy Dusanek 249.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 229.95             
Jill Flynn 1,278.53                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,178.50          
Stella Flynn 272.56                     -                   0.00 0.00 251.71             
Sullivan Flynn 303.19                     -                   0.00 0.00 279.99             
Grant Gassman 52.06                       -                   0.00 0.00 48.08               
Taylor Gassman 254.19                     -                   0.00 0.00 234.74             
Ella Glawatz 1,049.87                  -                   0.00 0.00 919.88             
Emma Hardersen 107.50                     -                   0.00 0.00 99.27               
Lacie Koppes 679.44                     -                   0.00 0.00 615.67             
Karle Kramer 594.13                     -                   0.00 0.00 548.68             
Carter Kuehler 128.13                     -                   0.00 0.00 118.33             
Carlos Lagunes-Torres 161.44                     -                   0.00 0.00 149.09             
Zoe Lagunes-Torres 102.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 94.20               
Lanie Luensman 799.12                     -                   0.00 0.00 714.22             
Jacob Miller 785.94                     -                   0.00 0.00 703.37             
Adalyn Monk 325.44                     -                   0.00 0.00 300.54             
Addison Norton 135.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 124.67             
Gage Rickels 192.19                     -                   0.00 0.00 177.48             
Samantha Ruchti 162.31                     -                   0.00 0.00 149.90             
Brynn Schmit 198.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 182.85             
Alexis Schneiter 321.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 296.45             
Emma Schwendinger 984.13                     -                   0.00 0.00 908.84             
Kendall Siebels 76.56                       -                   0.00 0.00 70.70               
River Smith 490.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 452.51             
Marissa Speltz 202.50                     -                   0.00 0.00 187.00             
Katherine Stadtmueller 291.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 268.74             
Karley Tobiason 190.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 175.46             

Page 2 of 3



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - JULY 25, 2024

Hayden Tomkins 67.38                       -                   0.00 0.00 62.22               
Brock Westphal 401.19                     -                   0.00 0.00 370.50             
Abigail Wright 76.56                       -                   0.00 0.00 70.70               
Lily Wright 217.50                     -                   0.00 0.00 200.86             

TOTAL POOL 13,799.55$              -$                 0.00 0.00 12,476.86$      

ROAD USE July 8 - 21, 2024
Zeb Bowser 2,066.40$                -$                 5.25 7.75 1,568.81$        
Jacob Gravel 2,085.77                  19.37               0.00 0.00 1,533.22          
Nick Kahler 2,578.35                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,832.70          
Jasper Scott 2,066.41                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,595.94          

TOTAL ROAD USE 8,796.93$                19.37$             5.25 7.75 6,530.67$        

SEWER July 6 - 19, 2024
Jim Tjaden 2,928.12$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,116.09$        

TOTAL SEWER 2,928.12$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,116.09$        

WATER July 6 - 19, 2024
Scott Hagen 2,126.40$                -$                 2.00 10.50 1,670.52$        
Josh Willms 2,126.40                  -                   6.00 10.50 1,416.87          

TOTAL WATER 4,252.80$                -$                 8.00 21.00 3,087.39$        

TOTAL - ALL DEPTS. 102,559.07$            1,381.85$        53.75 115.75 77,879.99$      

Page 3 of 3



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     1
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     GENERAL                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
                     BAKER PAPER CO INC             PD BUILDING SUPPLIES                                   63.68                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      PD COMPUTER SUPPORT FEES                               98.34                                                                                                                                                
                     JONES COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE   PD SUPPLIES                                            82.95                                                                                                                                                
                     LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.             PD ATTORNEY FEES                                      192.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MCALEER WATER CONDITIONING INC PD SOFTENER SALT                                       22.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MICHAEL'S CLOTHING             PD SUPPLIES                                            35.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT PD FUEL                                               925.20                                                                                                                                                
                     TRACY YOUSSE                   PD CAR LETTERING                                      415.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL                             1,834.17                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AQUATIC CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
                     CARRICO AQUATIC RESOURCES INC  POOL CHEMICALS                                      3,792.85                                                                                                                                                
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          POOL CONCESSIONS                                      239.41                                                                                                                                                
                     SULLIVAN FLYNN                 POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  375.00                                                                                                                                                
                     STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY      POOL LAB TEST                                          14.50                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      POOL OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    8.98                                                                                                                                                
                     LACIE R KOPPES                 POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  201.39                                                                                                                                                
                     LANIE M LUENSMAN               POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  187.50                                                                                                                                                
                     MYERS-COX CO.                  POOL CONCESSIONS                                    1,089.93                                                                                                                                                
                     EMMA J SCHWENDINGER            POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  375.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               440  AQUATIC CENTER TOTAL                                6,284.56                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CEMETERY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     IBEN CONSTRUCTION CO INC       CEM GRAVE OPENINGS - APR-JUNE                         675.00                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           CEMETERY GROUNDS SUPPLIES                             155.48                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT CEMETERY FUEL                                         390.67                                                                                                                                                
                     SYCAMORE MEDIA CORP            CEMETERY ADVERTISING                                   88.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               450  CEMETERY TOTAL                                      1,309.55                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SOLDIER'S MEMORIAL BOARD                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     D.I.A.L. /ELEVATOR SAFETY      ELEVATOR PERMIT/INSPECTION                             43.75                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               498  SOLDIER'S MEMORIAL BOARD  TOTAL                        43.75                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ATTORNEY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.             ATTORNEY FEES                                          82.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               641  ATTORNEY TOTAL                                         82.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     AMSTERDAM PRINTING AND LITHO   CH OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    631.80                                                                                                                                                
                     D.I.A.L. /ELEVATOR SAFETY      ELEVATOR PERMIT/INSPECTION                             87.50                                                                                                                                                
                     E.O. JOHNSON CO INC            CH COPIER MAINTENANCE                                 217.61                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      CH MISC CONTRACT WORK                                 225.74                                                                                                                                                
                     SYCAMORE MEDIA CORP            CH ADVERTISING                                        345.40                                                                                                                                                
                     ORBIS MENASHA CORP             CH FRANCHISE FEE REFUND                             7,956.27                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               650  CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS TOTAL                       9,464.32                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               001  GENERAL TOTAL                                      19,018.85                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     PARKS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     JACOB HEINSIUS                 MBC PEST CONTROL                                       70.00                                                                                                                                                
                     D&S PORTABLES, INC.            MBC PORT-A-POT RENTAL                                 231.25                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      MBC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    47.44                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           MBC GROUNDS SUPPLIES                                  134.99                                                                                                                                                
                     MINN TEX CITRUS                SOFTBALL/BASEBALL FIELD PREP                        4,000.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT MBC FUEL                                              149.48                                                                                                                                                
                     NATIONAL RECREATION & PARK     MBC NRPA CONFERENCE - OSWALD                          695.00                                                                                                                                                
                     NEXT GENERATION PLBG & HTG LLC MBC GROUNDS SUPPLIES                                  108.30                                                                                                                                                
                     KATHERINE S PARROTT            MBC GROWING UP WILD PROGRAM                           338.18                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               430  PARKS TOTAL                                         5,774.64                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               005  MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER TOTAL                     5,774.64                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     BUSINESS RADIO SALES & SERVICE FIRE RADIO SUPPLIES                                   106.80                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      FIRE COMPUTER SUPPORT FEES                             82.98                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           FIRE SUPPLIES                                          36.82                                                                                                                                                
                     LAPORTE MOTOR SUPPLY           FIRE VEHICLE REPAIR/MAINT                               9.94                                                                                                                                                
                     THEODORE KRAUS                 FIRE EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                               283.56                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT FIRE FUEL                                             368.30                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               150  FIRE TOTAL                                            888.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               015  FIRE TOTAL                                            888.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     BAKER PAPER CO INC             AMB BUILDING SUPPLIES                                  63.68                                                                                                                                                
                     BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC        AMB MEDICAL SUPPLIES                                  603.95                                                                                                                                                
                     CR PHARMACY SERVICE INC        AMB MEDICAL SUPPLIES                                  175.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      AMB DATA PROCESSING                                    22.98                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           AMB VEHICLE REPAIR/MAINT                              103.56                                                                                                                                                
                     KROMMINGA MOTORS INC           AMB VEHICLE OPERATING                                  95.40                                                                                                                                                
                     MCALEER WATER CONDITIONING INC AMB SOFTENER SALT                                      22.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT AMB FUEL                                              999.96                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EMER MEDICAL TEAM   AMB RADIOS                                          3,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                     RADIO COMMUNICATIONS CO INC    AMB RADIO MAINTENANCE                                 332.50                                                                                                                                                
                     UNITY POINT HEALTH             AMB PHARMACY SUPPLIES                                 644.49                                                                                                                                                
                     ZOLL MEDICAL CORPORATION       AMB MEDICAL SUPPLIES                                  290.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     3
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               160  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                     6,853.52                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               016  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                     6,853.52                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          LIB IMP SUMMER READING PROGRAM                         27.61                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                          27.61                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               030  LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                              27.61                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     D.I.A.L. /ELEVATOR SAFETY      ELEVATOR PERMIT/INSPECTION                             43.75                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           LIB BUILDING SUPPLIES                                  16.56                                                                                                                                                
                     MICRO MARKETING LLC            LIB AUDIO RECORDINGS                                   70.79                                                                                                                                                
                     OVERDRIVE                      LIB PROCESSING                                      1,269.60                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                       1,400.70                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               041  LIBRARY TOTAL                                       1,400.70                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     MONTICELLO AVIATION INC        AIRPORT MANAGER                                     2,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT AIRPORT FUEL                                          192.77                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               280  AIRPORT TOTAL                                       2,692.77                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               046  AIRPORT TOTAL                                       2,692.77                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ROAD USE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     STREETS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BEHRENDS CRUSHED STONE         RU STREET MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES                      1,064.48                                                                                                                                                
                     BRIAN CROWLEY                  RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 157.10                                                                                                                                                
                     HENNICK TREE SERVICE LLC       RU TREE REMOVAL                                     8,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      RU UTILITIES                                           11.48                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA STATE PRISON INDUSTRIES   RU STREET MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES                        519.40                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           RU STIHL HEDGETRIMMERS                                469.41                                                                                                                                                
                     K&S MACHINING AND METAL        RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 115.04                                                                                                                                                
                     KIMBALL MIDWEST                RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 402.41                                                                                                                                                
                     KROMMINGA MOTORS INC           RU LOADER RENTAL                                    1,072.86                                                                                                                                                
                     LAPORTE MOTOR SUPPLY           RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 392.41                                                                                                                                                
                     MCALLISTER ELECTRICAL SERVICES RU LIGHT SYSTEMS & STRUCTURES                         115.19                                                                                                                                                
                     THEODORE KRAUS                 RU TREE & STUMP REMOVAL                               250.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT RU FUEL                                             1,013.56                                                                                                                                                
                     L.L. PELLING CO                RU STREET MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES                      1,873.53                                                                                                                                                
                     WHITE HAWK PLUMBING & HEATING  RU BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                6,416.80                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     4
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               210  STREETS TOTAL                                      22,373.67                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  ROAD USE TOTAL                                     22,373.67                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LOW INCOME HOUSING FUND                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     CAPITAL PROJECTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     JONES CO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  LMI HOUSING SET ASIDE                              16,975.52                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               750  CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL                             16,975.52                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               336  LOW INCOME HOUSING FUND TOTAL                      16,975.52                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     C.C. BIDWELL LIBRARY BOOK                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           LIB BIDWELL BOOKS                                     761.31                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         761.31                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               502  C.C. BIDWELL LIBRARY BOOK TOTAL                       761.31                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     TRUST/IOMA MARY BAKER                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     CENTER POINT PUBLISHING        LIB BAKER BOOKS                                        79.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                          79.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               503  TRUST/IOMA MARY BAKER TOTAL                            79.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     HAWKINS WATER TREATMENT        WATER SYSTEM                                          990.97                                                                                                                                                
                     STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY      WATER LAB TESTS                                        58.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      WATER DATA PROCESSING                                  20.48                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA ONE CALL                  WATER SYSTEM                                           30.30                                                                                                                                                
                     MERCY PHYSICIAN ASSOCIATES     WATER OSHA - WILLMS                                    22.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT WATER FUEL                                            156.83                                                                                                                                                
                     MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC           WATER SYSTEM                                        2,450.00                                                                                                                                                
                     VIKING INDUSTRIAL PAINTING LLC WATER SYSTEM                                        6,000.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               810  WATER TOTAL                                         9,728.58                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               600  WATER TOTAL                                         9,728.58                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     JAMIE APPLEBY                  WATER DEPOSIT REFUND                                   50.00                                                                                                                                                
                     CITY OF MONTICELLO             TISH/LOGAN                                            883.11                                                                                                                                                
                     AMANDA GROLEAU                 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND                                  256.89                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     5
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               810  WATER TOTAL                                         1,190.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               602  CUSTOMER DEPOSITS TOTAL                             1,190.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          SEWER LAB SUPPLIES                                     34.11                                                                                                                                                
                     STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY      SEWER LAB TESTS                                       801.50                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      SEWER DATA PROCESSING                                   8.98                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA ONE CALL                  SEWER SYSTEM                                           30.30                                                                                                                                                
                     MERCY PHYSICIAN ASSOCIATES     SEWER OSHA - WILLMS                                    22.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT SEWER FUEL                                            156.80                                                                                                                                                
                     PIRC-TOBIN CONSTRUCTION INC    SEWER SYSTEM                                       27,501.17                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               815  SEWER TOTAL                                        28,554.86                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               610  SEWER TOTAL                                        28,554.86                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     JONES COUNTY SOLID WASTE       1ST QTR '25 ASSESSMENT                              5,050.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO COMM SCHOOL DISTRCT SANITATION FUEL                                        81.93                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               840  SANITATION TOTAL                                    5,131.93                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               670  SANITATION TOTAL                                    5,131.93                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     YARD WASTE SITE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     RANDALL G THUMAN               YARD WASTE COMPOST                                  7,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               840  SANITATION TOTAL                                    7,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               675  YARD WASTE SITE TOTAL                               7,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   ==============                                                                                                                                               
                                                    Accounts Payable Total                            128,951.76                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Fri Jul 26, 2024  4:10 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     6
                                              CLAIMS FUND SUMMARY                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                 
                                                   FUND  NAME                                   AMOUNT                                           
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                   001   GENERAL                             19,018.85                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   005   MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER            5,774.64                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   015   FIRE                                   888.40                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   016   AMBULANCE                            6,853.52                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   030   LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                     27.61                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   041   LIBRARY                              1,400.70                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   046   AIRPORT                              2,692.77                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   110   ROAD USE                            22,373.67                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   336   LOW INCOME HOUSING FUND             16,975.52                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   502   C.C. BIDWELL LIBRARY BOOK              761.31                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   503   TRUST/IOMA MARY BAKER                   79.40                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   600   WATER                                9,728.58                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   602   CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                    1,190.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   610   SEWER                               28,554.86                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   670   SANITATION                           5,131.93                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   675   YARD WASTE SITE                      7,500.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         ------------------------------- -------------                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         TOTAL FUNDS                        128,951.76                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  In order to provide financing for the development of the infrastructure at Northridge, the 
City will enter into a development agreement with Highland Corp. The Council must hold a public 
hearing as a prerequisite to the approval of such an agreement. 
 
The draft agreement is attached. The agreement is being reviewed, but has not yet been fully vetted by 
the City Attorney, Bond Counsel, or the developer. For that reason, the only action recommended at 
this time is to hold the required public hearing. No further action is requested, the final agreement will 
be brought back to Council for approval at a later date. 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that Council hold the public hearing. 

Agenda Item: # 1  
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Public Hearing Draft Development Agreement with Highland Corp. for 
Northridge Estates 5th Addition 

Type of Action Requested: Public Hearing 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Draft Agreement 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



   
 

 

 

 

 

 

Preparer Info:  Doug Herman, Monticello City Attorney, 200 E. 1st St., Monticello, IA 52310 Ph: 319.465.6435 

 

Development Agreement 

City of Monticello, Iowa and Highland Corp.  

 

Northridge Estates Fifth Addition – City of Monticello 

TIF Grant  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved by City Council 

August ____, 2024 



 2  
 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between the City of Monticello, 
Iowa, hereinafter referred to as the “City” and Highland Corp., hereinafter referred to as 
“Developer” is hereby made and entered this __th day of August, 2024. 

WHEREAS, the City and Developer have determined it appropriate for them to partner 
in regard to the costs associated with the installation of infrastructure, including but not limited 
to streets, sanitary and storm sewer, lighting, utility extensions, and other common infrastructure 
elements, related to the development of property owned by Developer and set out in a Final Plat 
identified and known as “Northridge Estates Fifth Addition – City of Monticello”, and 

WHEREAS, the City’s desire and agreement to partner with Developer is tied to City’s 
desire to see more opportunities for new housing development which is necessary and desirable 
to provide a variety of housing, eliminate current housing shortages, and support economic 
development and the growth of the City’s tax base, and 

WHEREAS, the final plat has been reviewed by the City Planning and Zoning Board 
and subsequently approved by the Monticello City Council, and 

WHEREAS, Chapters 15A, 384 and 403 of the Iowa Code authorize cities to provide 
infrastructure improvements for economic development and offer grants, loans or other financial 
incentives in furtherance of the objectives of urban renewal and economic development and to 
appropriate such funds and make such expenditures as may be necessary to realize those 
purposes, and to levy taxes and assessments for those purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Monticello City Council has approved and adopted an urban renewal 
plan for the area within which lies the Northridge Estates Fifth Addition, and provided by 
ordinance for the division of property taxes in same as a TIF District; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that this Agreement is in the best interests 
of the City and its residents and that the performance by the City of its obligations hereunder is a 
worthy public undertaking in furtherance of the City’s urban renewal plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that using TIF District funding in 
accordance with this Agreement is in the best interests of the City and its residents as the low-
and moderate-income housing set-aside provides additional incentives for more housing 
development that serves a variety of citizens, being therefore a worthy public undertaking in 
furtherance of the City’s urban renewal plan; and, 

WHEREAS, this Agreement and the City’s performance hereunder is in furtherance of 
appropriate economic development activities of the City within the meaning of Chapters 15A 
and 403 of the Iowa Code; and, 



 3  
 

WHEREAS, the City and Developer agree that certain improvements (collectively the 
“Improvements”), are needed to facilitate development of Northridge Estates Fifth Addition. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City and Developer in consideration of the terms, covenants, 
and conditions herein set forth, enter into the following Agreement for the development of the 
Addition: 

1. OBLIGATIONS OF DEVELOPER  Developer shall perform the following activities in 
conjunction with development. 

(A) Platting Process  Developer will obtain approval from the City for its final plat for the 
Northridge Estates Fifth Addition and for all plans and specifications for all infrastructure 
improvements within the development to be dedicated to the City and shall unconditionally give, 
grant, convey and dedicate those improvements, including streets and street lights, to the City 
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.  Acceptance of development improvements shall be 
determined solely by the City Council.  The Council may require changes in the plans and 
specifications for the improvements as a condition to its acceptance of the improvements. 

The final plat for the Addition shall comply with all Jones County, City of Monticello, State and 
Federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, subdivision ordinances, zoning 
ordinances and environmental regulations. 

(B) Street Extension  Developer agrees that the street as shown by the previously approved Final 
Plat of Northridge Estates Fifth Addition shall be constructed as one project and/or one phase, so 
that all proposed lots, currently numbered 1 through 12 will each be served by appropriate 
utilities and street frontage. 

Developer and its successors agree that the proposed Detention Area adjacent to Lot 8 and Lot 9 
shall not be dedicated to the City but shall be owned by an association of Lots within the 
development or by the owners of lots adjacent to Lot 8 and 9.  The City shall have no 
maintenance responsibilities with regard to that detention area, nor any other detention area 
within Northridge Estates Fifth Addition.   

Developer shall be responsible for the arrangement and contracting associated with all 
engineering costs and expenses related to the preparation of plans and specifications and bid 
related documents including documents associated with the awarding the contract, but not 
including construction supervision and/or management on the project.  These costs will all be 
considered as part of the “Infrastructure Improvement Costs” as defined subsequently herein. 

(E) Indemnification  Developer and its successors and assigns agree to indemnify and hold the 
City safe and harmless from all liability, loss or expense, including reasonable attorney fees that 
the City may be exposed to as a result of the claims, demands, costs, or judgments arising in 
connection with the activities contemplated under this Agreement.  Developer also agrees to 
indemnify City for any reasonable attorney fees or expenses incurred in connection with 
defending itself from any such claim, or in enforcing the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 



 4  
 

(F) Proof of Financing  Developer, by their execution of this Developer’s Agreement, certifies 
that it has the financing needed to pay for Developer’s share of the improvements to be 
developed in Northridge Estates Fifth Addition. 

(G) Tax-Exempt Entities  Developer agrees that at no time during the lifetime of any City debt or 
City obligation of financial assistance to Developer for the Development shall Developer sell or 
turn over control of any property within the Development to a tax-exempt entity, without the 
written consent of the City. 

(H) Legal Fees  Developer and City each agree to pay their own legal fees in connection with the 
negotiation, drafting and authorization of this Agreement. 

2. OBLIGATIONS OF CITY 

(A) Grant to Developer. The City agrees to pay the Developer, as an economic development 
grant, a sum equal to_____% of the infrastructure improvement costs in an amount not to exceed 
$309,000, said “Infrastructure Improvement Costs” to include and be specifically limited to: 

Costs associated with construction of the City-related infrastructure necessary for the 
development of Northridge Estates Fifth Addition, said costs to all be included within the bid 
specifications and the contract documents signed by the developer and the successful contractor.  
Generally speaking, same to include sanitary and storm sewer improvement installation, and/or 
water mains and appurtenances. Construction costs do not include the costs associated with 
sidewalk installation at any point within the development, landscaping or green space 
improvements within the development, or costs associated with the specific development or re-
development of any “lot” within the development.  Also excluded will be any costs associated 
with electric, gas, cable, phone, or other non-City utility improvements. 

City to pay developer the aforementioned grant as follows: 

1). Payment 1:  ___% of the City’s share of the project, or $____,000, whichever is 
less[RF1], two weeks after commencement of construction. 

Payment 2:  ____% of the City’s share of the project to be paid upon presentation 
of invoices/evidence confirming that, with said payment, 80% or more of the 
projected project costs will be satisfied. 

Payment 3:  ____% of the City’s share of the project to be paid upon 
confirmation by the City Engineer that the project has reached the point of 
“substantial completion”, and the infrastructure improvements have been 
dedicated to the public use and accepted by the City. 

2). The remaining balance owed on the grant, reduced by City Engineering Expenses 
associated with project supervision, inspection and approvals, and any other 
project related expenses incurred by the City and agreed to by the Developer as 
being appropriate project related expenses.  



 5  
 

(C) It is anticipated that the City will issue bonds or notes (the “Bonds”) to pay a share of the 
costs of the grant to the Developer.  The City is responsible to pay the City’s costs to secure the 
bonds or notes.  The parties hereby acknowledge that the City intends to use future incremental 
property tax revenues, as provided for in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, to be derived from 
the Development to pay principal of and interest on the bonds or notes, and the parties hereby 
collectively agree to use their best efforts to maximize the amount of such incremental property 
tax revenues as may from time to time become available with respect to the Development. 

3. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

(A) Third Parties and Developer’s successors shall have no recourse against the City under 
this Agreement.  

(B) Any additional financial assistance provided by the City to Developer, other than 
provided in this Agreement, shall require additional action of the City Council and shall require 
the City and Developer to enter into a negotiated agreement wholly separate from this 
Agreement. There is no guarantee or assurance of additional City financial assistance. 

(C) Breach of the terms of this Agreement by Developer shall be grounds for termination of 
this Agreement, denial of building permits, occupancy permits or other permits, or any other 
legal or equitable remedies available to the City.  Notwithstanding any other language to the 
contrary, in the event of breach of this Agreement by Developer, City shall give notice of such 
breach to Developer.  Developer shall have 60 days from receipt of such notice to cure the 
breach before the City may terminate this Agreement. 

(D) If any portion, section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph or phrase of this 
Agreement is for any reason held invalid, then that shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement. 

(E) The action or inaction of the City shall not constitute a waiver or amendment to the 
provisions of this Agreement.  To be binding, amendments or waivers must be in writing, signed 
by both parties and approved by resolution of the City Council.  The City’s failure to promptly 
take legal action to enforce this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver or a release. 

(F) Developer’s obligations under this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
unless Developer is released in writing by the City even if Developer sells a portion or all of the 
Development.  All subsequent purchasers of property within the Development shall be bound by 
the terms of this Agreement. 

(G) No member of the City Council or other official of the City shall participate in any 
decision relating to the Agreement which affects his or her personal interests or the interests of 
Developer or the interests of any entity in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested.  No 
member, official or employee of the City shall be personally liable to the City in the event of any 
default or breach by Developer or its successors of any obligations under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

(H) Except as otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, notices, demands or other 
communications under this Agreement by any party to any other shall be sufficiently given or 



 6  
 

delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, or delivered personally, to: 

In the case of Developer, to:   with a copy to: 

Highland Corp.    Highland Corp. 
Jeff Hinrichs     Attn: Joe Oswald 
 
 
In the case of the City, to:   with a copy to: 
 
City Administrator    City Clerk 
City of Monticello    City of Monticello 
200 E. 1st Street    200 E. 1st Street 
Monticello, IA 52310    Monticello, IA 52310 

(I) This Agreement will be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Iowa. 

(J) This Agreement shall govern the dealings between the City and the Developer with 
respect to the Development. 

(K) This Agreement and all promises and covenants herein expressed shall be deemed a 
covenant running with the land and shall be binding on Developer and its successors and assigns 
in interest. 

(L) Notwithstanding any language above to the contrary, the prevailing party in any litigation 
arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be entitled to reimbursement for its reasonable 
attorney fees and court costs. 

4.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

(TBD) 

5.  EXPIRATION/TERMINATION  

When does the agreement end? 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 
name and on its behalf and its seal to be hereto duly affixed, and Developer has caused this 
Agreement to be duly executed in its name and on its behalf, on the date first above written. 

For the CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 
 



 7  
 

By   
 Wayne Peach, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
By:   
 Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 

For HIGHLAND CORP. 
 
 
 
By:   By:   ___________________________ 
      

STATE OF IOWA ) 
 ) § 
COUNTY OF JONES ) 

On this ___ day of __________, 2024, before me a Notary Public in and for said County, 
personally appeared  to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they are the 
respectively, , created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed 
to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipal Corporation, and that said instrument 
was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipal Corporation by authority and resolution of its 
City Council and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and 
deed of said Municipal Corporation by it voluntarily executed. 

  
Notary Public in and for Jones County, Iowa 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
 ) § 
COUNTY OF JONES ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _______________, 2024, by , 
Members, of Highland Corp.. 

  
Notary Public in and for Jones County, Iowa 



07/19/2023













































 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Highland Corp. has asked the City to provide financial assistance to construct some of the 
infrastructure in Northridge Estates 5th Addition. Infrastructure costs have escalated dramatically while 
lot sales prices have remained low, resulting in Highland questioning if they want to proceed with 
developing the property. With some assistance, they can cover enough risk to be confident in moving 
forward with the development. 
 
In order to provide such assistance, the City needs to add the proposed development as a project in the 
Urban Renewal Plan.  
 
Background:  This project is the development of 12 new lots for single family homes, on 
approximately 6 acres of land. The lots would be located around a cul-de-sac proposed as “Valley 
Court”. The final plats of both the 5th and 6th additions were reviewed by the P&Z on July 11, 2023, 
and subsequently approved by the Council.  
 
The first four phases in Northridge developed over the past 20 years. The property is located in an area 
designated for “Low Density Urban Residential” and “Medium Density Residential” on the City’s 
comprehensive plan. The subdivision was planned entirely for single family detached homes, in a 
typical suburban layout. 
 
After obtaining bids on the development of the infrastructure, Highland Corp inquired about City 
participation in the project. 
 
By adding the project into the TIF, the City can participate using TIF funding. The City will be paid 
back in the taxes generated by the property (although this will be in the form of City debt issued to 
assist in the development up-front). This is projected to be about four years just from the anticipated 
increased value for the 12 improved lots. 

Agenda Item: # 2 & 3 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Public Hearing and Resolution Adding Northridge Estates 5th Addition 
as a project in the Urban Revitalization Plan (Highland Corp) 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Resolution 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed this proposal at their meeting of July 23, and unanimously 
recommended approval. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of the resolution, adding Northridge Estates 5th Addition as a project in 
the Urban Revitalization Plan, is recommended. 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

To Approve Amendment to Urban Renewal Plan to include Development  
Agreement and Economic Incentives to Highland Corp  

 
WHEREAS, The City of Monticello has previously created the Monticello Urban Renewal 
Area, as subsequently amended, hereinafter referenced as the “Urban Renewal Area”, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council, being been duly advised, has determined it appropriate and 
desirable to amend the Urban Renewal Plan to include the provision of incentives to be paid to 
Highland Corp consistent with a previously approved Development Agreement in return for the 
construction of twelve new single family home lots to the City of Monticello, County of Jones, 
State of Iowa, along Valley Drive in Northridge Estates subdivision, known as the Northridge 
Estates 5th Addition, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council desires to consider all input before making a final decision on the 
proposed amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, and  
 
WHEREAS, A Public Hearing must be scheduled to allow for public input on the proposed 
amendments, and the public hearing was previously scheduled with appropriate notice published 
in the Monticello Express for tonight, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Monticello Planning & Zoning Board previously reviewed the 
proposed amendment and voiced no objections, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Administrator invited the School Superintendent and the County 
Auditor to a meeting to discuss the proposed amendment as required by the Code, and 
 
WHEREAS, No objections have been received from the County, the School, or anyone else to 
the proposed amendment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council in session this 5th day 
of August, 2024, that the proposed amendment to the Monticello Urban Renewal Plan, 2024 Plan 
Amendment #1, approving an amendment to the plan to provide incentives to the Developer in 
return for the construction of twelve new single family home lots to the City of Monticello, 
County of Jones, State of Iowa, along Valley Drive in Northridge Estates subdivision, known as 
the Northridge Estates 5th Addition, as set out fully in a Development Agreement between the 
Developer and the City approved by Resolution No. 2024-____ on August 5, 2024. 
 

  
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 
5th day of August, 2024. 

 
__________________________________________ 

     Wayne Peach, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



666 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: Abatement Application filed by Kristofer Lyons related to residential improvements 
constructed at 308 North Gill Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
Background Information: This Resolution provides the tax abatement as set out in the Code for 
residential properties. The new value added by the improvement, up to $75,000, is exempt from 
taxation for five years. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommend that the Council approve the proposed resolution 
providing for the Standard Tax Abatement as set out above.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item: # 4  
Agenda Date: 8/5/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution to approve standard Residential Tax Abatement related to 
property located at 308 North Gill Street, Monticello 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

Proposed Resolution 

   

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 7/23/2024 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving Kristofer & Monica Lyons Tax Abatement  
Application related to Residential Improvements 

 constructed at 308 North Gill Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
WHEREAS, Monticello has enacted an Urban Revitalization Tax Abatement program 
and codified same at Chapter 10 of the Monticello Code of Ordinances, and 
 
WHEREAS, Kristofer Lyons has completed and filed an Application for Tax 
Abatement related to residential property located at 308 North Gill Street, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the information submitted therein is consistent 
with that required by the Monticello Code of Ordinances, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council further finds that the estimated completion date of the 
improvements is March 1, 2024, and finds, based thereon, that the Jones County Assessor 
will need to determine how many years of tax abatement remain on this property, being 
tied to the date on which the property was deemed to be 100% complete for taxation 
purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Application for Tax Abatement filed by Kristofer Lyons as set 
forth above, consistent with Chapter 10 of the Monticello Code of Ordinances, said 
Application bearing the date of March 4, 2024 and being signed by Kristofer Lyons and 
further directs the Monticello City Clerk to file same with the Jones County Assessor as 
prescribed by law. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 5th day 
of August, 2024. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



666 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: Abatement Application filed by Dennis & Kay Fear related to residential improvements 
constructed at 676 North Chestnut Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
Background Information: This Resolution provides the tax abatement as set out in the Code for 
residential properties. The new value added by the improvement, up to $75,000, is exempt from 
taxation for five years. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommend that the Council approve the proposed resolution 
providing for the Standard Tax Abatement as set out above.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item: #  5 
Agenda Date: 8/5/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution to approve standard Residential Tax Abatement related to 
property located at 676 North Chestnut Street, Monticello 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

Proposed Resolution 

   

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 7/23/2024 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving Dennis & Kay Fear Tax Abatement  
Application related to Residential Improvements 

 constructed at 676 North Chestnut Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
WHEREAS, Monticello has enacted an Urban Revitalization Tax Abatement program 
and codified same at Chapter 10 of the Monticello Code of Ordinances, and 
 
WHEREAS, Dennis & Kay Fear has completed and filed an Application for Tax 
Abatement related to residential property located at 676 North Chestnut Street, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the information submitted therein is consistent 
with that required by the Monticello Code of Ordinances, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council further finds that the estimated completion date of the 
improvements is July 18, 2023 and finds, based thereon, that the Jones County Assessor 
will need to determine how many years of tax abatement remain on this property, being 
tied to the date on which the property was deemed to be 100% complete for taxation 
purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Application for Tax Abatement filed by Dennis & Kay Fear as 
set forth above, consistent with Chapter 10 of the Monticello Code of Ordinances, said 
Application bearing the date of March 15, 2024 and being signed by Dennis & Kay Fear 
and further directs the Monticello City Clerk to file same with the Jones County Assessor 
as prescribed by law. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 5th day 
of August, 2024. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Sacred Heart Church owns the duplex at 302/304 N. Maple Street, and would like to sell 
the two units separately, necessitating a subdivision plat. 
 
Background:  This property was rezoned from R-1 to R-2 in 2012 and a 2-unit was constructed by 
Brian Monk, who intended to sell the two units separately as single family attached units. The property 
was purchased by Sacred Heart Parish in 2013, and was instead used as a duplex. 
 
Now the church would like to sell at least one of the units off separately. The lot meets the 12,000 
square feet minimum lot size for the R-2 District, and the setbacks are compliant. Chapter 165.32 of 
the Zoning Ordinance (R-2 District), Paragraph 2, Permitted Uses, allows this under the following 
conditions: 
         (1)   Building permit application includes a certificate signed by a licensed surveyor verifying lot 

line (the plat now does this). 
         (2)   Signed certificate from a licensed engineer or architect that the firewall meets or exceeds 

construction standards as set by the State of Iowa fire codes. 
 
Unfortunately, the plans and records from when the building was constructed no longer exist. The 
accompanying Plat verifies the lot line. However, the applicant still needs to provide the 
engineer/architect certificate, and have hired an architect and expect to be able to provide the 
verification prior to the Council meeting on August 5. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed this proposal at their meeting of July 23, and unanimously 
recommended approval, subject to the signed certificate. 
 
Recommendation: Pending submittal of the architect verification, approval of the resolution is 
recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 6 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Approve Plat Parcels 2024--39 and 2024-40, for Sacred Heart Church 
 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Resolution 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
The City of Monticello, Iowa 

 
RESOLUTION #      

     
Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2024-39 and Parcel 2024-40 

 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2024-39 and Parcel 2024-40 has been 
presented to the City Council for approval, same being located within the City Limits of 
the City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey creates two units separately as single family attached 
units, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, with the following condition: 
 

1. They provide a signed certificate from a licensed engineer or architect that the 
firewall meets or exceeds construction standards as set by the State of Iowa 
fire codes. 

and, 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey to Parcels 2024-39 and 
Parcel 2024-40 should be approved, with the condition listed above. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approves the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2024-39 and Parcel 2024-40, with the 
condition listed above. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 5th day of August, 2024. 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor  
 
 

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 









 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Roger Stephen has applied to subdivide another lot along South Main Street/Business 151, 
at the far south end of his property. The proposed parcel is 2.63 acres with frontage on South Main 
Street.  
 
The property is under contract to be purchased by Bob Hinz, for use by Tri County Propane, which is 
currently located on the other side of the road. Their goal is to build a new 30x50 foot office building 
and eventually a 60x80 foot shelter for their trucks. The bulk LP storage would remain on the west side 
of Main Street. Hinz’s goal is to connect the new buildings to water and sewer as part of their 

construction project. 
 
The property is currently unincorporated and within the City’s 2-
mile extraterritorial jurisdiction, so the City has the opportunity 
to review and comment on the proposed subdivision.  
 
Background:  Recently Stephen created a new parcel to sell to 
Freyes for their veterinarian clinic (Brad Stephen’s 3rd Addition), 
which spurred a need and request to extend City sewer to this 
area (water is available on the west side of Main Street). The 
recommendation was to let the project move forward while the 
City is working to bring sewer to this area. The sewer would be 
capable of serving a large portion of the surrounding geographic 
area, including both the future development of the Stephen 
property, and many of the existing businesses in the area.  
    

Location map of the subject property 
 

Agenda Item: # 7 & 8 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution Approving Preliminary and Final Plat Brad Stephen’s 
Fourth Addition (Stephen/Hinz) and Resolution Approving Pre-annexation agreement with Robert 
and Jan Hinz 

Type of Action Requested: Resolutions (2) 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Resolutions (2) 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



As part of that action and direction from Council, the City staff has been working on a pre-annexation 
agreement with Stephen that would guide future development of his land. Since the proposed parcel is 
another lot that will need to be serviced in the future, it is important to outline terms and conditions 
upon which this parcel would be annexed and serviced. While the actual annexation need not occur 
prior to development of the property, the pre-annexation agreement should be signed by the buyers to 
make sure that there are no misunderstandings in the future.  
 
A pre-annexation agreement was provided to Robert and Jan Hinz, which they signed. The pre-
annexation agreement is also on this agenda for City Council approval following approval of the plat. 
 
The subdivision plat is complete and correct. The proposed County zoning is C-2, which is otherwise 
compatible with the City’s comprehensive plan for this area. If the property can be annexed in the 
future, the subdivision of this additional lot will have minimal impact upon the future growth and 
development of the City.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed this proposal at their meeting of July 23, and unanimously 
recommended approval. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of the resolutions, one approving the Plat and a second approving the 
pre-annexation agreement, is recommended. 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION NO.       
 

Approving the Preliminary and Final Plat of Brad Stephen’s  
Fourth Addition, Jones County, Iowa, a subdivision of  

Lot 1 of Fourth Addition, all in Jones County, Iowa 
 
WHEREAS, There has been filed with the City Clerk a Preliminary and Final Plat of 
Brad Stephen’s Fourth Addition, Jones County, Iowa, a subdivision of Lot 1 of Fourth 
Addition, all in Jones County, Iowa 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Preliminary and 
Final Plat and recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS, Said final plat has been examined by the City Council and they find that 
the same conforms to the statutes and ordinances relating thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council concurs that the final plat of Brad Stephen’s Fourth 
Addition, Jones County, Iowa, a subdivision of Lot 1 of Fourth Addition, all in Jones 
County, Iowa, should be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Final Plat of Brad Stephen’s Fourth Addition, Jones County, 
Iowa, a subdivision of Lot 1 of Fourth Addition, all in Jones County, Iowa. 
  
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 5th day of August, 2024. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 











 
THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #  

 
Approving Robert F. and Jan M. Hinz Voluntary  

Pre-Annexation Agreement 
  
WHEREAS, The City Administrator was contacted by the owners of the Tri County 
Propane associated with the annexation of their property, and 
 
WHEREAS, Those discussions have led to the completion of an Annexation Agreement 
wherein terms and provisions related to the proposed annexation are set out, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Voluntary pre-annexation agreement is the first step in the annexation 
process, and the Council’s agreement to the terms and conditions of the pre-annexation 
agreement is a condition precedent to moving forward with the formal annexation process as 
set out in the Iowa Code, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the terms and provisions of the voluntary pre-annexation 
agreement to be fair and reasonable and that the approval of same is in the best interests of 
the City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Monticello, through its’ City 
Council, in session this 5th day of August, 2024, that the voluntary pre-annexation 
agreement between Robert F. and Jan M. Hinz (Tri County Propane) and the City of 
Monticello is hereby approved, the Mayor is directed to execute same on behalf of the City 
Council, and the City Administrator is directed to move forward with the Annexation 
process. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed 
my name and caused the Great Seal for the City of Monticello, 
Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 5th day of August, 2024. 

    
          
   Wanye Peach, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
     
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 







Memo 
Date: Wednesday, July 03, 2024 

Project: Construct Taxiway Connector 

To: Anthony Pollard, PE – FAA Central Region 

From: City of Monticello (Sponsor) 

Subject: 
FAA Review – Change Order No. 5 

Dear Mr. Pollard, 

The City of Monticello, Iowa (Sponsor) seeks to obtain FAA concurrence on Change Order No. 05 for the 

Construct Connector Taxiway project at the Monticello Regional Airport (MXO), AIP Grant No. 3-19-

0061-012-2022.  The Sponsor intends to prepare and submit a Grant Amendment request reflecting this 

proposed Change Order within this project’s closeout documents. 

The items included in this change order are minor corrections associated with as-built corrections and 

quantity adjustments in preparation for the final pay application. 

Please find attached the following supporting documents: 

• Change Order No. 05 document identifying the scope and the estimated $1,008 Change to the

Contract Price;

• Sponsor Estimate, completed by our consultant;

• Justification Statement

No differences were observed between the Sponsor Estimate and the Contractor’s Change Proposal as 

the items are all included in the contract, the Sponsor has not identified a need to negotiate the 

proposed Change in Contract Price.  The Sponsor intends to proceed with the $1,008 Change Order. 

Thank you for your time considering this request in advance. 

Sincerely 

Russ Farnum 

Monticello City Administrator 

Agenda item #9

Sally Hinrichsen
Highlight



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order EJCDC® C-941, Change Order, Rev.1. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 1 of 2 

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 05 

Owner: City of Monticello, Iowa Owner’s Project No.: - 
Engineer: HDR Engineer’s Project No.: 10332195 
Contractor: Boomerang Corp Contractor’s Project No.: - 
Project: Construct Connector Taxiway 
Contract Name: Construct Connector Taxiway 
Date Issued: 18 July 2024 Effective Date of Change Order: 18 July 2024 

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description: 

00 52 13 – Agreement: 

• Article 5 – Contract Price, Paragraph 5.01 B: Unit Price Work table;  

• Revise quantity for item C-102-2, Installation, Removal and Replacement of Silt Fence to add 159 
linear feet for a revised project total of 2,759 linear feet; Revise quantity of L-108-5.2 No. 4 
AWG, Solid, Bare Copper Counterpoise Wire and Grounding Rods to add 90 linear feet for a 
revised 3,190 linear feet; Revise quantity for L-110-5.1 Concrete Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 
Way - 2" Dia. to add 10 linear feet for a revised project total of 195 linear feet; Revise quantity 
for item L-110-5.2 Non-Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia. to add 90 linear feet for a 
revised project total of 3,190 linear feet; Revise quantity for item C-102-4 Temporary Seeding 
and Mulching to reduce the quantity by 2.5 acres for a revised project total of 0 acres; Revise 
quantity for item C-102-6 Inlet Protection Device to reduce the quantity by 2 each for a revised 
project total of 1 each; Revise quantity for item L-105-5.1 No. 8 AWG, 5 kV, l-824, Type C Cable, 
Installed in Conduit to reduce the quantity by 15 linear feet for a project total of 3,250 linear 
feet; Revise quantity for item L-108-5.1 to reduce the quantity by 15 linear feet for a project 
total of 3,250 linear feet.; Revise Total of all Extended Prices for Unit Price Work from 
$944,622.25.to $945,630.25. 

• Article 5 – Contract Price, Paragraph 5.01 C: Replace paragraph C with the following: “Total of 
Lump Sum Amount and Unit Price Work (subject to final Unit Price adjustment) $945,630.25 

Attachments: 

• Change Proposal 

• Sponsor Estimate 

• Justification Statement 

  



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order EJCDC® C-941, Change Order, Rev.1. 
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Change in Contract Price 
Change in Contract Times 

0 Days 

Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: 
 Substantial Completion: 150 Calendar Days 

$ 933,655.00 Ready for final payment: 180 Calendar Days 

  Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion: 160 Calendar Days 

$ 944,622.25 Ready for final payment: 190 Calendar Days 

  Increase this Change Order: Increase this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion: 0 Calendar Days 

$ 1,008 Ready for final payment: 0 Calendar Days 

  Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 
 Substantial Completion: 160 Calendar Days 

$ 945,630.25 Ready for final payment: 190 Calendar Days 

   

 Recommended by Engineer (if required)  Accepted by Contractor 

By: Matt Wilke   

Title: Engineer of Rectord   

Date: 7/18/2024   

 Authorized by Owner  Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable) 

By:    

Title:    

Date:    

 



CHANGE PROPOSAL 

Owner:   City of Monticello, Iowa 

Project Name:   Construct Connector Taxiway 

Change Proposal No.:  05       Date:  3 July 2024 

Subject:  Change Proposal for Final Pay Application 

 

The following changes to the Contract are proposed: 

 

SCOPE OF PROPOSED CHANGE TO CONTRACT: (Attach supporting documentation as necessary) 

Revise quantity for item C-102-2, Installation, Removal and Replacement of Silt Fence to add 159 linear 

feet for a revised project total of 2,759 linear feet; Revise quantity of L-108-5.2 No. 4 AWG, Solid, Bare 

Copper Counterpoise Wire and Grounding Rods to add 90 linear feet for a revised 3,190 linear feet; 

Revise quantity for L-110-5.1 Concrete Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia. to add 10 linear feet 

for a revised project total of 195 linear feet; Revise quantity for item L-110-5.2 Non-Encased Electrical 

Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia. to add 90 linear feet for a revised project total of 3,190 linear feet; Revise 

quantity for item C-102-4 Temporary Seeding and Mulching to reduce the quantity by 2.5 acres for a 

revised project total of 0 acres; Revise quantity for item C-102-6 Inlet Protection Device to reduce the 

quantity by 2 each for a revised project total of 1 each; Revise quantity for item L-105-5.1 No. 8 AWG, 5 

kV, l-824, Type C Cable, Installed in Conduit to reduce the quantity by 15 linear feet for a project total of 

3,250 linear feet; Revise quantity for item L-108-5.1 to reduce the quantity by 15 linear feet for a project 

total of 3,250 linear feet. 

JUSTIFICATION: 
Changes are made to account for minor field revisions and quantity accuracies for zeroing out the final 

pay application. 

 

PROPOSED CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE AND CONTRACT TIMES: 
We propose that the Contract Price and Contract Times be changes as follows: 

For Contract Price, attach detailed cost breakdowns for Contractor and Subcontractors, Supplier quotations, and other information 

required 

 

 Contract Times (days) 

Description Substantial Final 

1.  Silt Fence $318 0 0 

2. No. 4 AWG Solid $270 0 0 

3. Conc. Duct Bank $430 0 0 

4. Non-Encased Duct Bank $450 0 0 

5. Temp Seeding ($250) 0 0 

6. Inlet Protection Device ($150) 0 0 

7. No. 8 AWG ($30) 0 0 

8. No. 6 AWG ($30) 0 0 

    

Total This Change Proposal $1,008 0 0 

 

 



Contractor represents that supporting data attached to this Change Proposal are accurate and 

complete.  The requested time or price adjustment indicated in this Change Proposal is the entire 

adjustment to which the Contractor believes it is entitled as a result of the proposed change(s) indicated 

herein. 

 

Change Proposal by: _________________________, Boomerang Corp. (Contractor) 

 

Signature of Proposer: __________________________________________________________________ 



Documentation of Cost Analysis 
Pursuant to Federal Regulation 49 CFR Part 18.36(f), the Sponsor has performed a Cost  

Analysis comparing the Sponsor Estimate to the Change Proposal received by the Contractor  

(Boomerang Corp.) The percent difference between the Sponsor Estimate and the  

Change Proposal is less than 10%. 

Consequently, the Sponsor did not identify a need to negotiate the proposed Change in  

Contract Price further and intends to proceed with the Change Order with the  

Contractor. 

 

Item Sponsor Estimate Change Proposal % Difference 

C-102-2 $318 $318 0 

L-108-5.2 $270 $270 0 

L-110 5.1 $430 $430 0 

L-110 5.2 $450 $450 0 

C-102-4 ($250) ($250) 0 

C-102-6 ($150) ($150) 0 

L 108-5.1 ($30) ($30) 0 

L 108-5.3 ($30) ($30) 0 

    

 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #        
 

Approving Change Order #5 in the increased amount  
of $1,008.00, submitted  by Boomerang related to the Monticello  

Airport Taxiway Connector Project 
 
 

WHEREAS, Boomerang is contracted with the City to complete the Monticello Airport 
Taxiway Connector Project, AIP Project 3-19-0061-12-2022 and 
 
WHEREAS, Boomerang has submitted Change Order #5 are minor corrections 
associated with as-built corrections and quantity adjustments in preparation for the final 
pay application, in the increased amount of $1,008.00, and 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Engineer has reviewed the proposed Change Order #5, and 
recommends that they be approved by the City Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve Change Order #5 submitted by Boomerang related to the Monticello 
Airport Taxiway Connector Project in the increased amount of $1,008.00.  
 
 

IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 5th day of 
August, 2024. 

 
      
Wayne Peach, Mayor   

 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



City of Monticello | Construct Connector Taxiway 
Pay Request 

1917 S 67th Street, Omaha, NE  68106-2973 
(402) 399-1000 

hdrinc.com 

Pay Request 
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2024 

Project: Construct Connector Taxiway - MXO 

To: City Council 

From: HDR 

Subject: 
Pay Request # 07 

Dear Council, 

Enclosed for your review and approval is Pay Request No. 07 for the above referenced project.  We have 

reviewed this pay request and find it to be in agreement with the work completed to date. 

We have also reviewed improvements associated with the project referenced above and find the 

improvements to be acceptable and in general conformance with the contract documents.  Acceptance 

of Pay Request No. 07 is recommended for this project in the amount of $48,676.11 to Boomerang, 

Corp.   

If you have any questions or comments regarding this project, please feel free to contact me at 402-392-

6918. 

Sincerely, 

HDR 

Matthew J Wilke, P.E. 

Aviation Engineer 

Enclosure: Pay Request No. 7

cc: Keegan Parizek, Boomerang Corp. 

Agenda item #10

Sally Hinrichsen
Highlight



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #       
 

Approving Pay Request #7 related to the Monticello Airport 
 Taxiway Connector project, to Boomerang, which includes the 

 retainage, in the amount of $48,676.11 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated city within Jones County, 
Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, Boomerang was awarded the bid to construct the Taxiway Connector at 
the Monticello Airport on April 7, 2022, Resolution #2022-56, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Engineer, HDR Engineering has reviewed the sixth pay request 
from Boomerang related to said project and recommends that it be paid in the amount of 
$48,676.11, which includes the retainage, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Engineer, HDR Engineering recommends the project be considered 
substantially complete, and  
 
WHEREAS,  The Council finds, based upon the recommendation of the City Engineer, 
that said pay request should be approved. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve Pay Request #6 from Boomerang and authorizes payment in the 
amount of $48,676.11 and further considers substantially complete. 

 
IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City of 
Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 5th day of August, 
2024. 

 
____________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor   
 

Attest: 
 
____________________________________  
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



From

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

a. X Work Completed = 

b. X Stored Materials = 

c.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10332168

Current Contract Price (Line 1 + Line 2)

Contractor:

-$                              

Net change by Change Orders

FAA AIP 3-19-0061-012-2022

933,655.00$                

11,975.25$                  

945,630.25$                

945,630.25$                

-$                              

48,676.11$                  

0%

5%

896,954.14$                

to

Original Contract Price

 $       945,630.25 

-$                              

 $                        -   

Total Work completed and materials stored to date 

(Sum of Column G Lump Sum Total and Column J Unit Price Total)

Retainage

Total Retainage (Line 5.a + Line 5.b)

Amount eligible to date (Line 4 - Line 5.c)

Less previous payments (Line 6 from prior application)

Amount due this application

-$                              

By:

Title:

Date:

By:

Title:

Date:

Recommended by Engineer

9/30/2023 6/24/2024

Application Date: 6/24/2024

Approved by Funding Agency

By:

Title:

Date:

By:

Title:

Date:

Contractor:

Engineer:

Project:

-

945,630.25$                

Signature: Date:

Contractor's Certification

Balance to finish, including retainage (Line 3 - Line 4 + Line 5.c)

Approved by Owner

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the following:

(1) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been 

applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work covered by 

prior Applications for Payment;

(2) Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, or otherwise listed in or covered by this 

Application for Payment, will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all liens, security interests, and 

encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such 

liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and

(3) All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not 

defective.

Contractor's Application for Payment  

Application No.: 07

-

City of Monticello, Iowa

Boomerang

HDR

Construct Taxiway Connector

Owner's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Application Period:

Contract:

Owner:

EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved.

Boomerang Corporation

Keegan Parizek 07/17/2024

Matt Wilke

Engineer of Record

7/18/2024



-

10332168

-

07  From 09/30/23 to 06/24/24 06/24/24

A C D E F G H I J K L

Item Quantity Units

Unit Price

($)

Value of Bid Item

(C X E)

($)

Estimated 

Quantity 

Incorporated in 

the Work

Value of Work 

Completed to Date

(E X G)

($)

40-05 1 LS $9,000.00                     9,000.00                        1.00                     9,000.00                     9,000.00 100%                                  -   

C-100-1 1 LS $10,000.00                   10,000.00                        1.00                   10,000.00                   10,000.00 100%                                  -   

C-105-1 1 LS $175,000.00                175,000.00                        1.00                175,000.00                175,000.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-1 1 LS $4,000.00                     4,000.00                        1.00                     4,000.00                     4,000.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-2 2,600 LF $2.00                     5,200.00                2,600.00                     5,200.00                     5,200.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-3 230 SY $15.00                     3,450.00                    230.00                     3,450.00                     3,450.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-4 2.5 AC $100.00                        250.00                        2.50                        250.00                        250.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-5 1 LS $600.00                        600.00                        1.00                        600.00                        600.00 100%                                  -   

C-102-6 3 EA $75.00                        225.00                        3.00                        225.00                        225.00 100%                                  -   

P-101 1 LS $20,000.00                   20,000.00                        1.00                   20,000.00                   20,000.00 100%                                  -   

P-151-4.2 1 LS $1,000.00                     1,000.00                        1.00                     1,000.00                     1,000.00 100%                                  -   

P-152-1 8,400 BCY $5.00                   42,000.00                8,400.00                   42,000.00                   42,000.00 100%                                  -   

P-152-2 2,350 BCY $2.00                     4,700.00                2,350.00                     4,700.00                     4,700.00 100%                                  -   

P-152-3 6,090 SY $1.50                     9,135.00                6,090.00                     9,135.00                     9,135.00 100%                                  -   

P-154-5.1 6,090 SY $6.00                   36,540.00                6,090.00                   36,540.00                   36,540.00 100%                                  -   

P-501-1 5,230 SY $28.00                146,440.00                5,230.00                146,440.00                146,440.00 100%                                  -   

P-501-2 5,230 SY $35.00                183,050.00                5,230.00                183,050.00                183,050.00 100%                                  -   

P-605-1 8,700 LF $2.50                   21,750.00                8,700.00                   21,750.00                   21,750.00 100%                                  -   

P-620-5.1a 1 LS $4,000.00                     4,000.00                        1.00                     4,000.00                     4,000.00 100%                                  -   

P-620-5.2b 1 LS $7,000.00                     7,000.00                        1.00                     7,000.00                     7,000.00 100%                                  -   

P-620-5.3c 1 LS $750.00                        750.00                        1.00                        750.00                                  -                          750.00 100%                                  -   

D-701-5.1 126 LF $150.00                   18,900.00                    126.00                   18,900.00                                  -                     18,900.00 100%                                  -   

D-701-5.2 148 LF $145.00                   21,460.00                    148.00                   21,460.00                                  -                     21,460.00 100%                                  -   

D-701-5.3 78 LF $250.00                   19,500.00                      78.00                   19,500.00                   19,500.00 100%                                  -   

D-705-5.4 1,150 LF $30.00                   34,500.00                1,150.00                   34,500.00                   34,500.00 100%                                  -   

D-751-5.3 9 EA $700.00                     6,300.00                        9.00                     6,300.00                     6,300.00 100%                                  -   

D-751-5.1 2 EA $15,000.00                   30,000.00                        2.00                   30,000.00                                  -                     30,000.00 100%                                  -   

D-751-5.2 1 EA $2,500.00                     2,500.00                        1.00                     2,500.00                     2,500.00 100%                                  -   

T-901 5 AC $1,400.00                     7,000.00                        5.00                     7,000.00                     7,000.00 100%                                  -   

T-905-1 670 CY $9.00                     6,030.00                    670.00                     6,030.00                     6,030.00 100%                                  -   

T-908-1 24,200 SY $0.30                     7,260.00              24,200.00                     7,260.00                     7,260.00 100%                                  -   

L-108-5.1 3,265 LF $2.00                     6,530.00                3,265.00                     6,530.00                     6,530.00 100%                                  -   

L-108-5.2 3,100 LF $3.00                     9,300.00                3,100.00                     9,300.00                     9,300.00 100%                                  -   

L-108-5.3 3,265 LF $2.00                     6,530.00                3,265.00                     6,530.00                     6,530.00 100%                                  -   

L-110-5.1 185 LF $43.00                     7,955.00                    185.00                     7,955.00                     7,955.00 100%                                  -   

L-110-5.2 3,100 LF $5.00                   15,500.00                3,100.00                   15,500.00                   15,500.00 100%                                  -   

L-115-5.1 2 EA $5,000.00                   10,000.00                        2.00                   10,000.00                   10,000.00 100%                                  -   

L-125-5.1 31 EA $1,300.00                   40,300.00                      31.00                   40,300.00                   40,300.00 100%                                  -   

933,655.00$            933,655.00$            -$                           933,655.00$            100% -$                           

No. 4 AWG, Solid, Bare Copper Counterpoise Wire and 

No. 6 AWG, Insulated, Stranded Equipment Ground, Installed 

Non-Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia.

Mulching

Topsoil - Obtained on Site or Removed from Stockpile

Concrete Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia.

No. 8 AWG, 5 kV, l-824, Type C Cable, Installed in Conduit

24-inch, Class III, Reinforced Concrete Pipe, with Flared End 

15-inch, Class III, Reinforced Concrete Pipe, with Flared End 

30-inch, Class III, Reinforced Concrete Pipe

Pipe Underdrains for Airports

Materials Currently 

Stored (not in G)

($)

Work Completed 

and Materials 

Stored to Date 

(H + I)

($)

Contract Information

Bid Item 

No.

Installation, Removal and Replacement of Silt Fence

Stabilized Construction Entrance

Temporary Seeding and Mulching

Concrete Washout

Original Contract Totals

Clearing and Grubbing

Unclassified Excavation

Embankment In-Place

Subgrade Preparation

Subbase Course

Cement Concrete Pavement - Materials

Cement Concrete Pavement - Labor and Equipment

Joint Sealing Filler for New Concrete Pavement

Base Can Plaza, 2 L-867D Base Cans with Blanking Covers

L-861T Taxiway Edge Light, 24" Height, with L-867 Base

Inlet Protection Device

Removals

Surface Preparation

Marking

Reflective Media

Pipe Underdrain Cleanout

Aircraft Rated Precast Inlet or Manhole with Aircraft Rated Lid

SW-512, Area Intake with SW-604 Type 4B Casting

Seeding

Engineer:

Contractor:

Project:

Contract:

Application Date:Application Period:Application No.:

B

Management and Inspection of SWPPP

Original Contract

% of 

Value of 

Item

 (J / F)

(%)

Balance to Finish (F 

- J)

($)

Maintenance of Traffic

Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP)

Mobilization

Description

Work Completed

Contractor's Application for PaymentProgress Estimate - Unit Price Work

Owner's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

City of Monticello, Iowa

HDR

Boomerang

Construct Taxiway Connector

FAA AIP 

Owner:

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved. 1  of 2



-

10332168

-

07  From 09/30/23 to 06/24/24 06/24/24

A C D E F G H I J K L

Item Quantity Units

Unit Price

($)

Value of Bid Item

(C X E)

($)

Estimated 

Quantity 

Incorporated in 

the Work

Value of Work 

Completed to Date

(E X G)

($)

Materials Currently 

Stored (not in G)

($)

Work Completed 

and Materials 

Stored to Date 

(H + I)

($)

Contract Information

Bid Item 

No.

Engineer:

Contractor:

Project:

Contract:

Application Date:Application Period:Application No.:

B

% of 

Value of 

Item

 (J / F)

(%)

Balance to Finish (F 

- J)

($)Description

Work Completed

Contractor's Application for PaymentProgress Estimate - Unit Price Work

Owner's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

City of Monticello, Iowa

HDR

Boomerang

Construct Taxiway Connector

FAA AIP 

Owner:

01 - D-701-

5.3
                   (39.00)  LF                    250.00                   (9,750.00)                    (39.00)                   (9,750.00)                   (9,750.00) 100%                                  -   

02 - DR-

306
                       3.00  EA                    845.00                     2,535.00                        3.00                     2,535.00                     2,535.00 100%                                  -   

03-D-701-

5.3
                     40.00  LF                      32.05                     1,282.00                      40.00                     1,282.00                     1,282.00 100%                                  -   

03 - P-

152.2
                   295.00  BCY                        5.00                     1,475.00                    295.00                     1,475.00                     1,475.00 100%                                  -   

03 - P-154-

5.1
               1,735.00  SY                        6.00                   10,410.00                1,735.00                   10,410.00                   10,410.00 100%                                  -   

03 - P-154 

Fabric
               1,735.00  SY                        3.15                     5,465.25                1,735.00                     5,465.25                     5,465.25 100%                                  -   

04-P-501                        1.00  LS                    850.00                        850.00                        1.00                        850.00                        850.00 100%                                  -   

04 - L-125-

5.1
                     (4.00)  EA                1,300.00                   (5,200.00)                      (4.00)                   (5,200.00)                   (5,200.00) 100%                                  -   

04 L-

125.5.1
                       4.00  EA                    975.00                     3,900.00                        4.00                     3,900.00                     3,900.00 100%                                  -   

05 -C-102-

2
                   159.00  LF                        2.00                        318.00                    159.00                        318.00                        318.00 100%                                  -   

05 L-108-

5.2
                     90.00  LF                        3.00                        270.00                      90.00                        270.00                        270.00 100%                                  -   

05 L-110 

5.1
                     10.00  LF                      43.00                        430.00                      10.00                        430.00                        430.00 100%                                  -   

05 L-110 

5.2
                     90.00  LF                        5.00                        450.00                      90.00                        450.00                        450.00 100%                                  -   

05 C-102-4                      (2.50)  AC                    100.00                       (250.00)                      (2.50)                       (250.00)                       (250.00) 100%                                  -   

05 C-102-6                      (2.00)  EA                      75.00                       (150.00)                      (2.00)                       (150.00)                       (150.00) 100%                                  -   

05 L 108-

5.1
                   (15.00)  LF                        2.00                         (30.00)                    (15.00)                         (30.00)                         (30.00) 100%                                  -   

05 L 108-

5.3
                   (15.00)  LF                        2.00                         (30.00)                    (15.00)                         (30.00)                         (30.00) 100%                                  -   

                                 -                                    -                                    -                                    -   

                                 -                                    -                                    -                                    -   

                                 -                                    -                                    -                                    -   

11,975.25$              11,975.25$              -$                           11,975.25$              100% -$                           

945,630.25$            945,630.25$            -$                           945,630.25$            100% -$                           

Change Order Totals

Change Orders

Edge Light Parts

Additional Subbase

Addition of Item for Geotextile to P-154

Additonal reinforcing rebar

Removal of select taxiway Edge Lights

 Project Totals

Inlet Protection Device

No. 8 AWG, 5 kV, l-824, Type C Cable, Installed in Conduit

No. 6 AWG, Insulated, Stranded Equipment Ground, Installed 

in Conduit

24-inch, Class III, Reinforced Concrete Pipe, with Flared End 

Sections

Subdrain Outlet DR-306

Unit Price Adjustment of D-701-5.3 for 24" Arch Pipe

Additional Embankment In Place

Original Contract and Change Orders

Installation, Removal and Replacement of Silt Fence

No. 4 AWG, Solid, Bare Copper Counterpoise Wire and 

Grounding Rods

Concrete Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia.

Non-Encased Electrical Duct Bank, 1 Way - 2" Dia.

Temporary Seeding and Mulching

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved. 2  of 2



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The Apron and Taxiway Expansion project at the Airport is complete, and all punch list 
items have been corrected. 
 
With the last change order to balance out the project and last pay request, the City can also accept the 
improvements and close out the project. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of the Resolution is recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 11 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Acknowledging the completion and Acceptance of Monticello Airport 
Apron/taxiway Improvements project 
 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Resolution 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
The City of Monticello, Iowa 

 
RESOLUTION #   

 
Acknowledging the completion and Acceptance of Monticello 

Airport Apron/taxiway Improvements project  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Monticello and Boomerang previously entered into a contract 
related to the construction of the Monticello Regional Airport Taxiway Connector 
project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has been informed that final items on the punch list were 
recently addressed to the satisfaction of the City Airport Engineer, and he has, in the 
preparation of final paperwork related to a pay request submittal by the City to the FAA, 
requested that the Council formally accept the improvements and acknowledge their 
completion, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the Airport Taxiway Connector has been completed 
according to the plans and specifications, and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby acknowledge the completion of the Monticello Airport Apron/taxiway 
Improvements. 
 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 5th day of August, 2024. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach,  Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 





900 BELL DRIVE SW | CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52404-5070
P: 319-362-9394 l SNYDER-ASSOCIATES.COM 

v:\projects\2023\123.0484.08\construction\ltr_2024-08-05_payapp#3.docx 

July 29th, 2024

Mayor and City Council 

City of Monticello 

200 East 1st Street 

Monticello, IA 52310 

RE: N. CHESTNUT STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

PAY REQUEST #3 AND CHANGE ORDER #2 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Enclosed for your review and approval are Pay Request #3 and Change Order #2 for work 

completed on the N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction project.  

Payment for this period includes costs associated with earthwork, subbase placement, retaining 

walls, subdrain installation, and paving. 

Change Order #2 includes an oversized sleeve that was needed to connect to the existing water at 

the north connection point along N Chestnut Street. 

We have reviewed the pay estimates and find it in agreement with the work completed to date. 

We, therefore, recommend approval of Pay Request #3 in the amount of $196,690.66 to Eastern 

Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC. Additionally, we recommend approval of Change Order #2 

with a $513.50 increase to the overall project cost. The total project cost would be increased from 

$514,619.60 to $515,133.10. 

Feel free to contact me to discuss this further if needed.   Thank you.

Respectfully, 

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Colton Ingels, P.E. 

Project Engineer 

Enclosure: Pay Request #3, Change Order #2 

Cc: Matt Menster, Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC; Russ Farnum, City of 

Monticello 

Agenda item:  12 & 13

Sally Hinrichsen
Highlight











The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #          
 

Approving Change Order #2, in the increased amount of $513.50  
submitted by Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC related to 

 the N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project 
 
 

WHEREAS, Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC is contracted with the City to 
complete the N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project, and 
 
WHEREAS, Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC has submitted Change Order #2 
includes an oversized sleeve that was needed to connect to the existing water at 
the north connection point along N Chestnut Street, with the increased amount of 
$513.50, and 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Engineer has reviewed the proposed Change Order #2, and 
further recommends that it be approved by the City Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve Change Order #2 submitted by Eastern Iowa Excavating & 
Concrete, LLC related to the N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project in the increased 
amount of $513.50.  The total project cost would be increased from $514,619.60 to 
$515,133.10.  
 
 

IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 5th day of 
August, 2024. 

 
      
Wayne Peach, Mayor   

 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #    
 

Approving Pay Request #3 to Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC, 
 Re: N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project in the amount of $196,690.66 

 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated city within Jones County, 
Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC contracted with the City to 
reconstruct North Chestnut Street, and  
 
WHEREAS, Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC has submitted their third pay 
request in the amount of $196,690.66 same reflecting the maintenance of a 5% retainer in 
the current amount of $21,878.24, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council finds that the pay request is supported by the work completed 
and that the City Engineer has recommended approval of said pay request. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, 
Iowa does hereby approve the third pay request from Eastern Iowa Excavating & 
Concrete, LLC, in the amount of $196,690.66, same reflecting the maintenance of a 5% 
retainer in the current amount of $21,878.24. 

 
IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City of 
Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 5th day of August 
2024. 

 
____________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor   
 
 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: #  14-23   
Agenda Date: 8/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Reports 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Reports; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
   
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 7/31/2024 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  City Engineer Patrick Schwickerath will be at the Council meeting to share and discuss the 
latest plans for the 6th Street Ditch improvements, along with implementation, timing, and what is 
needed from the neighboring property owners. 
 
I have attached the Communication Page from the November, 2022, work session on this same project. 
Staff and the City Engineer have been proceeding based upon that direction from Council, which was 
nearly 2 years ago. This includes: 
 

• City project: this is a City-led project, as the property owners are not going to do this in a 
coordinated fashion “on their own”; 

• Bond funded: we did the bond last September; the cash is in hand; 
• No special assessment from the adjoining property owners; 
• Easements will specifically spell out long term maintenance requirements, and the construction 

will make that maintenance feasible (i.e. property owners mow and remove saplings before 
they become trees, etc.) 

• Easements will be granted by the owners at no cost, in exchange for the City doing this project. 
 
As we are beginning discussions with the property owners on the easements, we wanted to make sure 
Council was still good proceeding in this direction.  
 
Recommendation: Council direction and input is requested. 

Agenda Item: # 24 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Work session on 6th Street Ditch 
 

Type of Action Requested: Work session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
None 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  The City Administrator, City Attorney, and City Engineer have reviewed the previous 
discussion on the approach for the 6th Street Ditch improvements from the October 24 Council work 
session.  
 
The following information is provided for continued discussion and direction by the Council: 
 
City Project: While the adjacent property owners do have a benefit from having the ditch on their 
property, there is also a liability of having to maintain it. In addition, the ditch drains a much larger 
watershed area than just a few blocks of these impacted homeowners. Therefore, the City should play 
the lead agency in rehabbing this ditch, due to the Corps of Engineers permitting requirements and the 
overall vision of the project becoming an improvement to the area, rather than a series of piecemeal 
improvements.  
 
Funding: While the City has a USDA funding package approved for this project, it is not the best 
solution. Council direction on funding through a GO Bond planned for FY 23/24 is recommended. 
 
Scope of the Project: The 2017 Ditch Rehab Plans (engineering) focused on the section of the ditch 
between Chestnut Street, and extending east across Cedar Street then north to 6th Street. Council action 
to limit the project to this geographic area, at this time, is recommended. It is recognized that the 
section of ditch west of this area, to Jacobs Park, also will need rehab in the near future. 
 
Cost Estimates: In reviewing with the City Engineer, the cost estimate for the construction portion of 
the ditch rehab project is still in the $700,000 range. This does not include updated engineering, 
construction inspections, permitting, or Corps of Engineers impact payments. The updated engineering 
will depend on what site conditions have changed, potential permitting changes with new regulations 
and what services are needed for easements. The additions to update the permitting and Corps of 

Agenda Item: #  
Agenda Date: 11/21/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Continued work session, 6th Street Ditch 

Type of Action Requested: Discussion and Direction 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
None 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/17/2022 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



Engineers review could add over $150,000 to the construction price - but are unknown until design and 
permitting are completed. 
 
Special Assessment: Council had asked for a review of the “scale” of what a special assessment would 
be for this project. Since the small portion of structural work benefits single property owners, and most 
of the project is grading and re-seeding, it is difficult to attribute a special assessment without spending 
a lot of time on individual properties. However, using the Sycamore Street improvement percentages 
as a guide, approximately 10% of the overall costs were assessed to the homeowners.  
 
For the 6th Street Ditch project, the project length is 870 lineal feet, with two banks (one bank on each 
side of the ditch) totaling 1740 lineal feet of bank. Ten percent of $700,000 is $70,000, divided by 
1740 feet, is $40.23 per lineal foot of bank, per side. If someone owns only one side of the ditch, that 
owner would be assessed at 40.23 per lineal foot along the ditch length along the property. If someone 
owns both sides of the ditch, they would pay $80.46 per foot, as they are benefitting from the 
improvements to both sides of the ditch. For comparison the average Sycamore Street assessment was 
$36 per foot (for one side of the street), or about $970 per property. 
 
That is a very rough calculation to establish the scope, but Council should recognize that the easements 
have value as well (discussed further below). Special assessments have always been the hold up on 
getting this project completed, which only increases the cost of implementation over time. This is 
because, unlike a street project where the City already owns the street, the City has no rights to enter or 
maintain the 6th Street Ditch (in turn, the City has no obligation to maintain it, either). 
 
Easements:  The City Attorney has clarified that the City can condemn easements if required. 
However, that adds a lot of time and expense to the project. If voluntary easements can be acquired, it 
is preferable. Further, the easements could include language that would require the owners to do day-
to-day maintenance (such as mowing, weed and tree removal, maintaining the grade, etc.) and have the 
City do the major rehab work (rip-rap or armoring repair/replacement, wall or structural maintenance, 
etc.).  In addition, the easement language could give the City rights to enter and perform the day-to-day 
maintenance if the property owner failed to do so. All of these provisions are a substantial 
improvement over the rights and authority the City and the property owners have today. 
 
  
Recommendation: Council discussion and further direction is requested.  
 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  At the July 15 Council meeting, Derek Lumsden led a work session and discussion on goal 
setting for the next few years. 
 
The preliminary report has been drafted and will be distributed under separate cover later this week.  
 
Derek will be at the work session on August 5 to go through the report with Staff and Council, and 
present the findings and conclusions.  
 
Depending upon Council input at the August 5 meeting, the final report may be adopted at the August 
19 meeting. 
 
Recommendation: Council discussion, direction and input is requested. 

Agenda Item: #25  
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Work session on Goal Setting and Follow Up Report 
 

Type of Action Requested: Work session  

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Preliminary Report (Under Separate Cover) 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The State Auditors and Council have asked for a written policy on cash management and 
internal controls on financial transactions. This policy outlines separation of responsibilities and duties 
to provide accountancy checks and balances for the City’s transactions. 
 
A draft was provided for discussion and possible approval at the July 15 Council meeting but Council 
asked that this be placed as a work session item prior to action. 
 
Background:  The State has routinely brought up cash management and transaction controls as an 
issue in our annual audit. This is frustrating, as an operation with minimal staff, there are only so many 
ways to check and double-check the City’s transactions.  
 
Further, there were never any instances of mistakes or any instance of non-compliance. In fact, the 
Auditor notes: 
 

“The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters which are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.” 

 
However, having some guidelines and policies to minimize the potential for fraud, theft, or similar 
larceny is desirable.  It is also necessary so that everyone on staff understands their roles and 
responsibilities, and can be held accountable for their actions. 
 
The main provisions include: 
 

• How transactions are handled as well as the payments received; 
• How transactions and receipts are balanced and reconciled; 
• How each department that logs transactions handles the currency and bank deposits; 

Agenda Item: # 26 
Agenda Date: 08/05/2024 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Work session on Proposed Cash Management and Internal Control 
Policy 

Type of Action Requested: Work session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Draft Policy 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 07/31/2024 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



• How often deposits must be made and reported to the Clerk; 
• Other provisions for other transactions (credit charges, petty cash, payroll, collections and 

write-offs). 
 
Sally and I agree that this policy suits the City’s needs and will help address the Auditors’ comments. 
I’m sure Council will note the City will probably never be able to hire sufficient staff to provide full 
compliance with the Auditors’ requests, but this will cover the essential concerns. 
 
Staff has received concerns and questions from two Council members. These include the following: 
 
1) What was the source or sources for compiling this policy (i.e. what was it modeled after)?  
 
Sally got several model documents from her cohort Clerks in other communities, and Jacob had gotten 
a model document at a seminar at the University of Iowa. I reached out and got several from the City 
Manager’s group. 
 
2) Under Objectives, page 2, item 2 – it’s Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, not 
Principals  
 
This has been corrected. 
 
3)  Page 3, item 1 – Payments received in person:  where exactly will this be applicable?  Baseball 
tournaments, league sign-ups, the pool, library photocopies, etc.? How will everyone be issued a 
receipt?  This may not be feasible for every type of purchase (like a candy bar) – so what is 
constituting a “payment”? Does it apply to cash and checks both? Is there a minimum amount this 
needs to reach to be issued a receipt? 
 
This is applicable anywhere payments are received in person (as opposed to made online). The 
payments need to be documented either by entering into a digital system (“cash register”) or issuing a 
receipt of some sort (the Auditor stated that all receipts should have pre-printed consecutive numbers). 
Yes, it applies to cash and checks, and there is not a minimum amount for transactions. Yes, it’s 
theoretically burdensome but not so much with a touchpad cash register or digital device.  We use 
cash register system at the pool and are considering getting iPads or some system for baseball 
tournaments and similar events. 
 
4) Page 3, items 5 & 6 – When would the city clerk make an exception for approval – what are 
some scenarios when this does not need to be followed (cashing checks and refunds and expenditures)? 
Does this need to be more specific (otherwise it could apply anywhere and is arbitrary)? 
 
It would be rare, and most likely would only occur on a bank holiday when City Hall is open but banks 
are closed and someone is in a pinch, or in a case where someone has paid twice and the check has 
already cleared. Sally will explain more at the meeting. 
 
5) Page 3, item 7 – Does this cash reconciliation process apply to all points of sale of the day for 
anyone who receives cash that day? 
 
Yes. 
 



6) Page 4, items 2 & 3 – who will be enforcing the practice of a weekly deposit for all groups who 
receive cash or checks?  Is there a targeted day of the week for this to happen?  How will you know 
that all funds received are being deposited within one week? 
 
The City Clerk/Treasurer will be enforcing the practice. If there is a question about performance, the 
Clerk will report it to the City Administrator for action. There is no targeted day of the week for 
deposits. Random or surprise checks or audits could be done if there is a concern. 
 
7) Pages 5-6, all organizations – how long does each department have to complete a reconciliation 
in the event of discrepancies? What if the amount is still off, what is the process?  
 
Since the deposits have to be done weekly at a minimum, the reconciliation would need to be done and 
corrected within that week as well. If the amount is still off, it needs to be explained and justified to the 
City Clerk/Treasurer. 
 
8) Page 7, petty cash – why would the petty cash amount be $1,800 for youth and adult 
tournaments?  Petty cash is commonly defined as a small amount of money kept on hand for making 
small payments for office supplies, postage, snacks, gifts, or making customer change.  Further down 
in this same paragraph it is stated as “incidental small expenditures, not to exceed $15.”  Why would 
this be so excessive as an on-hand amount? Is the amount necessary to have on-hand before a 
tournament starts, to make change?  If so, how many cash boxes or registers does this cover, and will 
the excess funds be deposited at the end of the day, or wait until Monday when banks reopen, 
assuming the tournament is on a weekend? Will the excess be removed immediately to a locked box? 
 
This amount has already been determined and set by Ordinance after Council discussion. Tournaments 
usually run on weekends when there are no (or very limited) bank hours for making change or getting 
more cash. This covers Johnson, Shannon and High School complexes, 9 ball fields, three concession 
stands, and yes, the cash must be removed and stored in a locked facility, inside a locked box, out of 
public view, overnight, in compliance with the other sections of the policy. 
 
9) Under payments received section #1 - Are we giving receipts to everyone at the pool, 
tournaments, etc.? That seems like a lot of extra time that isn’t always available at these locations.  I 
know we talked about this and you mentioned we can make these places an exemption, I do not agree 
with making these an exemption as these are the areas that bring in the most cash for the city.  
Wouldn’t we be better off getting a register at each location that can keep the running total of cash that 
is brought in and going out.  
 
The auditor wants a way to track (control) every transaction at every location. Whether logging it in to 
a cash register, digital transaction, or writing a pre-printed progressively numbered receipt, every 
transaction should be tracked. Yes, it’s theoretically burdensome but not so much with a touchpad 
cash register or digital device. The City uses computer-based “cash registers” at City Hall, pool, 
Berndes Center, and the Library. Long term we’d like to get something for baseball tournaments and 
similar rec events, whether iPads or a cash register, we may want to go cashless at some locations, as 
well.  
 
10) Under preparation of deposits #2 you are saying we need to have deposits done a min of a 
week. However, in the first paragraph under deposits and receipts it states 3 days.  I feel we need to be 
constant through out what the expectation is.  
 



City Hall is a minimum of 3 days due to the volume of transactions (and accounting for 2 days on 
weekends). Otherwise City Hall banking is typically done daily. Library, Berndes Center, Pool and PD 
don’t need to be that often, as they have nowhere near the volume of transactions, or dollars, that City 
Hall experiences. 
 
11) What are the repercussions if this cash policy is not followed, there needs to be a section stating 
exactly what happens for first offense, and subsequent offenses thereafter, in my opinion. If we have 
this policy, we need everyone to understand procedures as well as the consequences if the procedures 
are not followed.  If that is in the policy then there is no gray areas when issues arise. 
 
Discipline is clearly spelled out in the Employee Handbook, there is no need to repeat it in this policy. 
If any Council member needs a copy of the Employee Handbook please let me know. 
 
 
 


	A 01 a 8.5.2024 Agenda
	A 02 a 7.15.2024 Council minutes
	A 03 b July 25 2024 Payroll
	Sheet1

	A 04 a Claims Report 08.06.2024
	B  01 a Communication Page Northridge Development Agreement Public Hearing Only
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	B 01 b Northridge 5th Add Devt Agreement August 2024 2nd draft
	1. OBLIGATIONS OF DEVELOPER
	(A) Platting Process
	(B) Street Extension  Developer agrees that the street as shown by the previously approved Final Plat of Northridge Estates Fifth Addition shall be constructed as one project and/or one phase, so that all proposed lots, currently numbered 1 through 12...
	(E) Indemnification
	(C)
	(D)
	(E)
	(F) Proof of Financing
	(G) Tax-Exempt Entities
	(H) Legal Fees

	2. OBLIGATIONS OF CITY
	(A) Grant to Developer
	1). Payment 1:  ___% of the City’s share of the project, or $____,000, whichever is less , two weeks after commencement of construction.
	Payment 2:  ____% of the City’s share of the project to be paid upon presentation of invoices/evidence confirming that, with said payment, 80% or more of the projected project costs will be satisfied.
	Payment 3:  ____% of the City’s share of the project to be paid upon confirmation by the City Engineer that the project has reached the point of “substantial completion”, and the infrastructure improvements have been dedicated to the public use and ac...

	3. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

	B 01 c Northridge 5th Plan 071923
	B 03 a Communication Page Northridge 5 TIF
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 2 & 3
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	B 04 b 2024-     Urban.Renewal.Plan.Amendment(Highland Corp.Northridge.5th.Addition)
	D 01 a Communication Kristofer.Monica.Lyons.308 N.Gill.St.Tax.Abate
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 4
	Agenda Date: 8/5/2024

	D 01 b 2024-    Lyons.Kristofer.308.N.Gill.Tax Abate.Approval)
	D 02 a Communication Dennis.Kay.Fear.676 N.Chestnut.St.Tax.Abate
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: #  5
	Agenda Date: 8/5/2024

	D 02 b 2024-   Fear.Dennis.Kay.676.N.Chestnut.Tax Abate.Approval)
	D 03 a Communication Page Sacred Heart Duplex Plat
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 6
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	D 03 b 2024-    Resolution(Plat.Survey.2024.39 & 224.40.Sacred Heart Church)
	D 03 c Final Plat sacred heart church 2024
	D 04 a Communication Page Stephen Plat
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 7 & 8
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	D 04 b 2024-         Brad Stephen;s 4th Add- final plat
	D 04 c Final Plat Brad Stephen Fourth Add
	D 04 d Final Plat Brad Stephen Fourth Add Sheet 2
	D 04 e Preliminary Plat Brad Stephen Fourth Add
	D 04 f Stephen Property Development Concept Plan (marked up)
	D 05 b 2024-     Resolution.Hinz(Pre.Annex.Agrmt.)08.05.2024
	D 05 c Hinz Pre Annex Agreement Signed
	D 06 a CO 5_MXO Construct TWY_ 3 July 2024
	CO No 5 Memo_3 July 2024
	CO No 5_Change Proposal_3 July 2024
	CO No 5_Cost Analysis_3 July 2024

	D 06 b 2024-  Boomerang (airport.taxiway)(Change.Order5 )
	RESOLUTION #

	D 07 a Pay Request 07
	D 07 b 2024-  Boomerang(airport.taxiway.Connector.Pay.Request.6 & final)
	RESOLUTION #

	D 07 c Final Pay Application_MXO Taxiway_Signed
	EJCDC C-620 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 2018 (REV. SEPT 2023
	EJCDC C-620 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 2018 (REV. SEPT 2023_Unit Prices

	D 08 a Communication Page Apron Taxiway Acceptance
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 11
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	D 08 b 2024-        Airport Taxiway Connector (Completion.Acknowlegement.Retainage)
	D 08 c statement of completion
	D 09 a PayApp_2024-08-05_PR3_Signed
	D 09 b 2024-       Eastern.Iowa.Excavating (N.Chestnut.St Project)(Change.Order.2)
	RESOLUTION #

	D 10 b 2024-           Eastern Iowa Excavation.N Chestnut(Pay.Request.3)08.05.2024
	RESOLUTION #
	Approving Pay Request #3 to Eastern Iowa Excavating & Concrete, LLC,
	Re: N. Chestnut Street Reconstruction Project in the amount of $196,690.66

	H 01 a Communication Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: #  14-23
	Agenda Date: 8/05/2024

	J 02 a Communication Page Worksession 6th St Ditch
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 24
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	J 02 b Communication Page 6th Street Ditch Worksession Part 2
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: #
	Agenda Date: 11/21/2022

	J 03 a Communication Page Goal Setting Worksession No.2
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: #25
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024

	J 04 a Communication Page Cash Policy (003)
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 26
	Agenda Date: 08/05/2024




